ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 15, 2013
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Harriet Drunmond

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 21
"An Act relating to the length of a school week; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 87
"An Act extending the special education service agency; and
providing for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 21

SHORT TI TLE: FOUR- DAY SCHOCL WEEK
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) P. WLSON, T.WLSON, KRElISS- TOWKI NS

01/ 16/ 13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 13
01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) EDC, FIN

02/ 15/ 13 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE TAWM E W LSON
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 15, 2013



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATENMENT: Participated in the presentation of HB 21,
as a joint prine sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE PETE H GE NS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered coments on HB 21.

DR. DONALD GATZKE, Teacher
Hooper Bay, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 21.

LAUREN BURCH, Superi ntendent

Sout heast |sland School District

Thorne Bay, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 21.

Bl NG SANTAMOUR

Bet hel , Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 21.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03:22 AM

CHAI R LYNN GATTIS called the House Education Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to order were
Representatives Gattis, P. WIson, Seat on, Rei nbol d, and

Saddl er.

HB 21- FOUR- DAY SCHOOL WEEK

8:03: 54 AM

CHAI R GATTI S announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 21, "An Act relating to the length of a school
week; and providing for an effective date.”

8:04: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON introduced HB 21, paraphrasing fromthe
sponsor statenent, which read [original punctuation provided]:

HB 21 would allow a pilot program for one rural schoo
district to inplenment a 4 day school week.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -2- February 15, 2013



There is continued concern of poor student perfornmance
in our schools. W should be actively seeking
alternative solutions that may inprove district
results. There are over 22 states in the US that have
i npl emented a 4 day week in rural districts.

For nost schools this has been a positive achi evenent
— increased norale for students and teachers, reduced
absenteei sm and all owi ng teachers and students to have
nore direct contact tinme which then leads to better
under st andi ng of educational materials.

Provisions in HB 21 require the district to show that
the majority of the community, students and teachers
support t he i npl enent ati on of this pr ogr am
Additionally, the district will have to prove that the
students are receiving the equivalent of a 5 day
school week. They will also be required to file
quarterly reports to the Departnent of Education on
student and teacher performance and the effect of the
pr ogr am Specifically an annual report wll be
required to be submitted to the |egislative education
commttee on the progress and performance ratings from
the school district. This report will be due no later
than January 15th and rnust include a conparison of the
performance ratings before and after inplenentation of
the 4 day week.

This bill is specific for a 3 year pilot program at
the end of that tinme period, the State Board of
Education will evaluate the program and determne if

it is beneficial to the district.
8:09: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed caution for designing a system
focusing on cost saving and convenience versus school
achi evenent .

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON agreed, and said that an annual report
Wil | be required for submssion to this comittee, the
commi ssioner of Departnent of Education and Early Devel oprment
(EED), as well as to the State Board of Education and Early
Devel opnment, ensuring student progress and school performance.
She suggested that if a school adopts a four-day week and

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2013



i ndicates an inprovenent of performance, it would be inportant
information for other schools considering a simlar schedul e.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON  suggested specific requirenents be
stipulated to ensure that the quality of education is reflected
in the reports that will be filed, and he stated support for the
bill.

8:11: 47 AM

CHAIR GATTI S asked how the equivalency of a five-day week wl|l
be acconplished in four-days; possibly inplenenting on-line
courses, working fromhone, or |onger school days.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said a |onger school day would be
scheduled, to ensure that the same nunber of teacher:student
hours are maintained, and deferred further details for response
by the school superintendent.

8:12: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER queried whether teachers are supportive
and if contract issues have been consi dered.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said the teacher agreenents will not be
changed, as the expectation is for educators to work a five-day
week. To a followup question, regarding student response and
achi evenment when attending nodified school days, she directed
attention to the commttee packet and several reports based on
data from states with public schools that offer a four-day
school week. She said the information is thorough regarding
schol astic achi evenent; however, information on attendance nay
not be as avail abl e.

8:14:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the fiscal note, which
stipulates 153 teaching days, and said it may be in conflict
with statute that requires 172 days, despite the length of the
day. He pointed out that the bill does not contain a provision
tenporarily suspending the day count requirenent to acconmodate
t he proposed pil ot program

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON reiterated that the teachers are

supportive of the schedule, and have the expectation to work
five-days in accordance with current contracts. The law al |l ows

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 15, 2013



schools to request departnental waivers, an option which sone
districts may choose to exerci se.

8:16: 55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE TAMM E WLSON, Al aska State Legislature, speaking

as a joint prime sponsor, said statute currently allows schools
to request a four-day school week through the Ofice of the

Comm ssi oner, EED; however, the bill provides autonony and
flexibility to districts based on comunity interest and
i nvol venent. The four-day week has worked well in other states,

as indicated in the reports contained in the commttee packet,
and she said, attendance is shown to inprove and stress |evels

are | owered. She reported how the three-day weekend provides
exciting options, and said many of the prograns operate best in
small  conmuni ties. Further, she stressed how this bil

represents |l ocal control and provides cost saving neasures. The
anount of savings to a district would depend on a nunber of

factors, which include: fuel, food, and wutilities. Anot her
benefit is having |longer blocks of class tinme available, during
the extended day. Reports indicate that students respond
positively to these |engthened study periods. There may be a

downside also, as changing a traditional schedule always
presents a challenge. A district with several schools would not
be required to have every school on a four-day week, and she
underscored that the bill is not a one size fits all rmandate.
She reiterated the flexibility that HB 21 allows parents, and
rem nded the commttee that parental involvenent is known as a
key factor for school inprovenent. In order for a district to
consider a four-day week, a high level of parental involvenent
IS required. As a three year pilot program HB 21 will return
to the conmttee for review Finally, she said the district
will handle financial concerns and budgetary adjustnents, hence
the zero fiscal note attached to the bill

8:23:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER clarified that HB 21 allows sone schools
in a district to not inplement the four-day week and asked if
there is language in the bill stipulating that option.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON confirmed the nenbers understandi ng and
said language is not included, as the decision occurs at the
| ocal level, through community neetings.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noted that the bill specifies "district,"”
and he nmaintained the necessity for |anguage stipulating that a

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 5- February 15, 2013



"school" could request permssion to continue a five-day
program

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said that schools are already allowed
the five-day week, and HB 21 provides an option for a four-day
program

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER drew attention to page 1, line 13, and
paraphrased the |anguage which states "denonstrates mmjority
comunity support ...", to ask what nethod of neasurenent will
determ ne the | evel of support.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON answered that conmunity public hearings

would be held, and commobn sense nmay need to prevail in
determining the Ilevel of comunity support; a percent for
required agreenment is not stipulated. She stressed that the
best laid plan will not work in a community that does not
enbrace the concept. Additionally, a district could inplenent a

four-day week for one year, and if it doesn't prove successful
W t hout extensive effort return to the five-day program the
foll owi ng year.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noted that it would be the call of the
| ocal school board, whether there was cause to change to a four-
day week and conjectured that the recourse for the conmunity
would be to overturn the school board at the next available
el ecti on.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON stressed the inportance for |oca
control of schools, and HB 21 provides another tool for a
district to tailor a programto neet specific needs, as well as
to i npl enent cost saving neasures.

8.27.22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his understanding that the option
will be available to all districts, but a district nust apply
within 30 days of the effective date of the act; it is not an

ongoing pilot programwth start-up allowed any tine.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said HB 21 is specific to allow one
district to participate in a pilot programfor three years. She
said the sponsors nay be open to an amendnent to allow other
districts to participate. However, the intent is that the pilot
program will report data to ensure that this approach works for
Al aska.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON added that the tineframe was stipul ated
to enable the district requesting the action to inplenent the
programin the com ng school year [2013-14].

8:29:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noted that the program appears successful
in several states, and suggested that it be nade available to
other districts w thout delay.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON responded that EED has expressed
concern, as inplenentation necessitates appropriate planning.
Additionally, the Iimt ensures that districts will approach the
option with caution and by exercising due diligence.

8:30:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON confirmed that HB 21 doesn't override the
comm ssioner's ability to grant flexible schedules through the
statute already available; the bill is outside of that authority
wi t hout cancelling it.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON clarified that HB 21 does override the
authority intentionally, as the requesting district has nmade

application to the departnent and been denied. However
providing the opportunity for the district to make the decision
through comunity involvenent s inportant, and the bil

establ i shes that option.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON added that the focus is not only on
finances; however, in sone areas a school bus ride nmay be in
excess of an hour every day, which represents a significant tine
commtnment for the student as well as cost to the district. She
expressed hope that other districts will see this as an option
for inplenentation.

8:33:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE H GA@ NS characterized the proposal as a good
i dea. However, he opined that it would be an injustice for the
district that brought this forward because this [Ilegislation]
makes it open to all districts. He further opined that it could
be an issue if the departnment awarded this pilot project to
another district [besides the district that brought it forward].
Therefore, he related his belief that the proposal should be
available for all districts that neet the criteria because then

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 15, 2013



the pilot prograns could be conpared to determ ne how well the
program is wor ki ng.

8:34: 58 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said that the requesting district may
have gai ned approval via the conm ssioner's office if they had
been able to provide required information, which is now on hand.
She said it would not be objectionable anend HB 21 for the
pur pose of allow ng additional participation.

8:36:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER directed attention to page 1, line 6 and
read, "the board shall approve, at the request of the governing
body of a school district,” and asked if the board being
referred to is the State Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent or the |ocal school board. He pointed out that the
governing body would be the local school board, and suggested
that there nay be a conflict in the | anguage as drafted.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON clarified that the initial reference to
"board" is intended to be the |ocal school board, and agreed
that the | anguage may need to be clarified/ amended.

8:37:40 AM

DR. DONALD GATZKE, Teacher, stated support for HB 21 and said
how a child fulfills required school attendance should be |eft
to the discretion of the parents speaking through the I ocal
school board, and should not be an issue of state authority.
The inportant point is not the configuration of days, but the
seat time required. If the parents are supportive and all owed
to have their child attend a four-day week, he conjectured, it
may be a stinulus for themto ensure that the student attend as
required. He said sone students mss over 100 days per year,
and there is a direct correlation between attendance and
performance. \Whatever can be done to assist parents in getting
their child to school should be a focus. Therefore, if parents
want ed year-a-round school with tinme between quarters, such a
schedul e should also be supported. Enphasis for attendance
versus stipulating when attendance will occur is inportant, he
stressed. Al so, a case could be nmade for the benefit to the
student in having a |longer school day, and teachers would
appreci ate having extended tine to cover |esson plans. The
teacher contract is negotiable with the [ocal union bargaining
unit he finished, and urged passage of the bill.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 15, 2013



8:40: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked about the correlation between
attendance and performance and asked for the outside limts;
when m ght effectiveness begin to fade.

DR. GATZKE offered that a six-day school week provides a higher
performance even wth a shortened school year.

8:41: 33 AM

LAUREN BURCH, Superintendent, Southeast |sland School District,
said the Southeast Island School District requested a four-day
school week for the |ast school year, as a grassroots initiative
from the nine school comunities in the area. Over ninety
percent of the community nenbers are behind taking this
approach, and the teachers are also supportive. He suggested
that anmending the bill to add I|anguage stating "or board
approved alternative schedule” would address the concern for
m ni mum days relating to teacher retirenent. Consi dering the
sports and other activities, he projected that attendance could
be inproved by 20 percent, as many Friday or Monday dates are
used for students to travel for either school or private
reasons. The district request was turned down by EED due to
| ack of information regarding how a four-day week could work in
a small rural area. He pointed out that the district's proposal
i ncludes professional developnent tinme for teacher's to be
scheduled for Fridays, and is a radical inprovenent. Havi ng
nine schools that are separated by large distances, it 1is
difficult to bring staff together and this would help that
effort imensely. The district is considered successful by any
standard, he reported, and stressed that there are a dozen ways
for students to attain an education. The current structure
results in students m ssing too many school days.

8:47:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noted that not all schools will go to
t he four-day school week, and asked for clarification.

MR. BURCH responded that a nunber of school calendars are
proposed and chosen by majority rule. Many of the schools only
have 10 students with a variety of specific needs and if one
chose to stay with a five-day program it would be inportant to
take that under consideration

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- February 15, 2013



8:50: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what woul d constitute an expression
of conpelling support to approve a pilot four-day week at either
an individual school or district w de.

MR. BURCH said najority vote has been the rule, and the Advisory
School Council (ASC) conmmunity neetings are highly attended;
voting includes students. He said that the district wde ASC
vote was over 80 percent last year and the voting can be
reported by site. The ASC wi elds a heavy influence over schoo

oper ations, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER queried whether the district would be
| ocked into a three year conpliance period, or could it return
to a five-day status on denmand.

MR. BURCH responded that the ASC would expect to be able to
request an imediate change if the program were not
satisfactory.

8:54:48 AM

Bl NG SANTAMOUR, stated support for HB 21, and said it should be
available to other districts as well. The existing [statute]
allowing a district to apply for a four-day school week may be
all that is necessary, if it is broadened, she suggested, and
urged support of the bill.

The conmttee took an at-ease from8:57 a.m to 9:56 a. m

9:56: 57 AM

CHAI R GATTI S apol ogi zed for the extended at-ease and announced
that HB 21 woul d be held over.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Educati on Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:57 a.m

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -10- February 15, 2013



